Minutes of a meeting of the Safety Committee of the Bolsover District Council held in Committee Room One, Sherwood Lodge, Bolsover, on Friday, 4th February 2011 at 1400 hours.

PRESENT:-

Councillor D. McGregor - Chair

Members:-

Councillors P.M Bowmer, J.A. Clifton and B.R. Murray-Carr.

Unison:-

R. Farnsworth, R. Frisby, W. Hatton and N. Potter.

Unite:-

S. Sambrooks.

Officers:-

S. Tomlinson (Director of Neighbourhoods) (to minute no. 797), L. Keeling (Head of Human Resources and Payroll), T. Walker (Health and Safety Officer) and R. Leadbeater (Democratic Services Officer).

792. APOLOGIES

There were no apologies.

793. URGENT ITEMS

There were no urgent items of business to consider.

794. DECLARATION OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest submitted.

795. MINUTES – 27TH OCTOBER 2010

Moved by Councillor J.A. Clifton, seconded by Councillor B.R. Murray-Carr **RESOLVED** that the minutes of a meeting of the Safety Committee held on 27th October 2010 be approved as a true record.

Minute No. 197. General Health and Safety Report

Councillor Murray-Carr confirmed that the issue of trolleys for transporting materials at the depot had been satisfactorily resolved.

Minute No. 479 General Health and Safety Report

The Health and Safety Officer confirmed that the Asbestos Policy was still to be updated and would be brought to a future meeting of the Safety Committee.

(Health and Safety Officer)

796. DRIVING AT WORK POLICY

The Director of Neighbourhoods presented the report to seek Committee approval to adopt the Driving at Work Policy and to recommend that the proposed disciplinary procedures be incorporated into employees' Conditions of Contract.

The policy had been developed by the Fleet Review Group and had been based upon the best practice of other organisations. Members were advised that the primary aim of the policy was to protect the health and safety of Council employees, members of the public and other road users. The Director of Neighbourhoods further added that the Council's Operators Licence could potentially be revoked if road safety was compromised by the Council's or its employees' negligence, either as a result of unsafe driving or poorly maintained vehicles. It was added that this would have a catastrophic affect on the Council's ability to deliver a number of its essential services.

On introduction of the policy, drivers of Council vehicles would be required to carry out a daily check of their vehicle before starting their journey. Vehicle faults would then be reported to immediate line managers. Housing Repairs employees on mobile working had been allowed five minutes for these checks.

Members were advised that the policy would introduce sanctions for employees who had two or more 'at fault' accidents. Stage one would be an informal meeting where Managers would arrange for a Driver Assessment to be undertaken, stage two would invoke the formal disciplinary procedure.

Employees would be banned from driving Council vehicles when nine points had been incurred on their license.

Members questioned whether the five minutes that it was proposed to be allocated to undertake the vehicle checklist was adequate. The Director of Neighbourhoods responded that most of the checks were simple and policies introduced by other organisations also provided for a similar time allowance to undertake these vehicle checks. It was added that the checks undertaken would not be over and above those carried out by any responsible driver to ensure their vehicle was in a roadworthy condition.

Union representatives responded that whilst the purpose of the policy was accepted, there were concerns that this may result in job losses. It was further added that the time allocated for the vehicle checks was in no way adequate and that most drivers would not have the facility to measure a vehicle's exhaust emissions as part of a general check. Further concerns were raised over the proposal to ban employees with 9 penalty points from driving Council vehicles when the limit set by the DVLA was 12 points. Questions were raised as to whether this would apply to volunteers as well as permanent staff. Union Representatives maintained that they had not been given sufficient opportunity to consider the policy and information from meetings involving Heads of Service had not been disseminated.

The Director of Neighbourhoods responded to the points raised:

- a specific time allowance was not included in the policy itself and had only been referred to in the report. This had been based on best practice at other authorities but could be subject to discussion.
- the checks were not over and above those that any responsible driver would carry out but the point raised in respect of exhaust emissions was acknowledged and could be discussed further.
- the issue in relation to volunteers had not been raised by the relevant managers who had been in attendance at the Fleet Review Group meetings.
- the ban on driving Council vehicles with 9 penalty points had been based on best practice. Some organisations had set their limits at 6 and in a few cases 3 penalty points.
- The Head of Human Resources and Payroll confirmed that the invites to the Fleet Review Group had been sent to the Union Branch Secretaries.
- The Director of Neighbourhoods also confirmed that copies of the draft policy had been forwarded to both Branch Secretaries for comment prior to Christmas offering a discussion. This had been taken up by Unison, prior to wider discussion at the Management Team Trade Union Liaison meeting.

Trade Unions suggested that the meeting be adjourned or the item be deferred to allow further discussion to take place.

The Chair concluded by acknowledging the concerns of the Trade Unions but added that implementation of the policy from a health and safety perspective was of too great importance to delay. The issues in respect of the number of penalty points allowed before disqualification from driving occurred and the time provided to undertake the vehicle checklist were noted. It was added that further discussions could take place to agree how these concerns could be addressed The inclusion of exhaust emissions on the vehicle checklist may also need further change but these issues need not prevent the policy being put in place.

Moved by Councillor B.R. Murray-Carr, seconded by Councillor D. McGregor **RESOLVED** that (1) the proposed Driving at Work Policy as outlined in the report be approved, subject to further discussions taking place between Management and Unions in respect of the time allowed for vehicle checks and whether exhaust emissions should be included in the checklist.

RECOMMENDED that (1) the disciplinary action for breaches of the policy be incorporated into employees' Conditions of Contract.

(Director of Neighbourhoods/Democratic Services)

The Director of Neighbourhoods left the meeting.

797. SICKNESS ABSENCE/OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH STATISTICS OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2010

The Head of Human Resources and Payroll presented the report to update Members on sickness absence and Occupational Health statistics for the period 1st October to 31st December 2010. Comparative figures for the previous year were also provided.

The outturn for October to December 2010 was 2.01 days per full time equivalent which was lower than the target of 2.10 days. The overall target for 2010/11 was 8.5 days with the outturn currently standing at 5.62 days for the 9 month period from April to December.

A full breakdown of long term and short term sickness absence by department was included for Members' information.

Occupational Health referrals had increased to 9 from 5 for the equivalent period last year.

Members expressed their disappointment with regard to the high levels of sickness absence recorded for apprentices. The Head of Human Resources and Payroll acknowledged that the absences were significant and advised Members that a proportion of these were due to those apprentices employed at hospitals being requested to stay off work as part of their infection control measures. However overall, the high levels of absence were of concern and Members were assured that the Council's sickness absence procedure was being applied. The Apprenticeship Programme Co-ordinator had also emphasised the importance of regular attendance with the apprentices.

Moved by Councillor J.A. Clifton, seconded by Councillor D. McGregor **RESOLVED** that the report be received.

798. GENERAL HEALTH AND SAFETY REPORT AND PERSONAL PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT POLICY

The Health and Safety Officer presented the report to update Members on a number of Health and Safety issues. Members were also requested to consider and approve the revisions to the Personal and Protective Equipment Policy.

Members' attention was drawn to a number of issues including:

- Asbestos Management an asbestos resurvey would be undertaken.
 Very little asbestos had been found during the last survey.
- Stress Risk Assessments following a discussion at Extended Management Team, a revised procedure for Stress Risk Assessments would be considered by the Joint Senior Management Team/Extended Management Team on 24 February 2011. A large proportion of Heads of Service had failed to complete the current Stress Risk Assessments and would now be given a maximum of three months to complete these under the new procedure, the three months being from April to June 2011. Members raised concerns that the Stress Risk Assessments remained outstanding and requested that an update be provided to the next meeting by the Head of Human Resources and Payroll.
- Improvement Notice Action Plan (Vibration) Work activity continued to be surveyed. No further incidents of exposure over the maximum limits had been recorded.
- Occupational Health Contract A new Occupational Health Contract would be in place by 1st June 2011. The Health and Safety Officer was requested to check that representatives from both Unions had been invited to meetings to undertake the tendering process.

- Policy Reviews Details of policies that had been subject to review were provided for Members' information. These could be provided to Members on request.
- Legionella Legionella had been detected in the water system of one of the Council's properties. Checks had been carried out and a site visit would take place with the Health Protection Agency. The Health and Safety Officer was requested to provide an update to the next Safety Committee meeting.

Members' considered the revised Personal Protective Equipment Policy. The Health and Safety Officer was requested to contact the CAN Rangers' Manager with regard to the supply of high visibility vests.

Moved by Councillor B.R. Murray-Carr, seconded by Councillor J.A. Clifton **RESOLVED** that the report and changes to the policies outlined be accepted.

(Head of Human Resources and Payroll/Health and Safety Officer/Democratic Services)

799. THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985

Moved by Councillor D. McGregor, seconded by Councillor J.A. Clifton. **RESOLVED** that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the stated Paragraph of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act and it is not in the public interest for that to be revealed.

800. ACCIDENT AND STRESS STATISTICS OCTOBER TO DECEMBER 2010 EXEMPT - PARAGRAPH 2

The Health and Safety Officer presented the report to advise Members of the accident and stress statistics for the period 1st October to 31st December 2010.

Members were advised that there had been no lost time or reportable accidents during the period and overall accidents had reduced from 16 in 2009 to 11 for the same period in 2010.

Moved by Councillor B.R. Murray-Carr, seconded by Councillor D. McGregor **RESOLVED** that the report be received.

801. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The date of the next meeting was confirmed as 18th April 2011.

The meeting concluded at 1133 hours.